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The history of the people and of the country is to a large degree
reflected in historical archives, which preserve the documentary remains
of institutions and individuals of past ages.

The historical archives in Israel were established at the initiative of
the Government and public institutions — the Zionist Organisation and
its affiliated bodies and the General Federation of Labour — and various
groups having the interests of historical research and documentation
at heart.

The archives and their professional staffs are organised in the “Israel
Archives Association” which was established in 1956 and is a member of
the UNESCO “Conseil International des Archives”.

This booklet, published by the Israel Archives Association, contains
information supplied by the archives themselves about their collections
and scope of activity. All archives are open to the public for inspection
and research.

According to the Archives Law adopted by the Knesset in 1955, the
Government Archives (The State Archives and the Archives of the
Israel Defence Army) and the Public Archives (the other archives sur-
veyed below) are under the supervision of the State Archivist. The latter
is assisted by an Archives Council and by committees appointed for
special purposes. The Archives Law prohibits the destruction of archival
material without permission of the State Archivist.

The Archives Law imposes on the State Archivist the duty to register
archival material in the possession of individuals and private bodies.
This registration is carried out, in close co-operation with the Public
Archives, at the Archives Registration Office, State Archives, Hakirya,
Jerusalem.



Jerusalem
THE STATE ARCHIVES
Jerusalem, Hakirya, Tel.: 4327

Founded in 1949, the State Archives received legal status in the Archives Law,
1955, and are now the official repository of the State of Israel. The law decrees
that all government offices and institutions, as well as local authorities, deposit
their files in the State Archives in so far as the files are no longer required for
current administrative work and will contribute to historical research in
the future.

In accordance with the Archives Law the Prime Minister appointed in
August 1956 a State Archivist, who has to supervise the Archives in Israel and
to arrange for the disposal of records that are no longer required for adminis-
trative work and are of no value for research.

The Archives have in their possession files of the Mandatory Government of
Palestine, as well as the original documents embodying Israel’s statehood such
as the Declaration of Independence, statutes and laws, credentials of foreign
representatives, treaties with foreign powers etc.

State Archivist: Dr. A, Bein.

Diteciur uf the 3late Arclilves: Dr, P. A, Alsbery.

THE CENTRAL ZIONIST ARCHIVES
Jerusalem, 1, Rehov Ibn Gavirol, P.O.B. 92, Tel. : 4671

The Central Zionist Archives were founded in Berlin in 1919 and transferred
to Jerusalem in 1933/34. As the historical archives of the Zionist movement,
the World Zionist Organisation (including its affiliated bodies) and the Jewish
Agency, its function is to preserve the documentary material on the history of
Zionism and of Jewish settlement in Palestine.

The main body of the Archives consists of the files of the Central Offices of
the Zionist Organisation since its foundation in 1897, of the Jewish Agency, of
the National Funds and of archives belonging to the principal institutions of the
Jewish community in Palestine, during the period before the establishment of the
State of Israel (e.g. the Vaad Leumi archives and others). These records are
éupplemented by archives of personalities, among them those of Theodor Herzl
and the other Presidents of the World Zionist Organisation, and by the archives
of various pre-Zionist and Zionist Societies.

In addition the Archives have the following subsidiary collections: library
(35,000 vols.), periodicals, leaflets and small-size printed matter, photographs,
voice-recording tapes and films.

The Archives publish the bibliographical bulletin “Zionist Literature” and
guides to its collections and inventories, They are preparing i.a. a Hebrew edition
of Theodor Herzl’s collected writings in 20 volumes,

Director: Dr. A, Bein.

I



THE ARCHIVES OF RELIGIOUS ZIONISM

Jerusalem, Rabbi Kook Foundation, Shehunat Maimon,
P.O.B. 642, Tel.: 4709

The Archives of Religious Zionism, affiliated to the Rabbi Kook Foundation,
were established in 1953,

Their object is to collect material on the history of religious Zionism and all
its branches, as well as on the part played by orthodox Jewry in building up
Erez Israel.

The Archives are active in four spheres: Concentrating the archives of the
central institutions and national organisations of the Mizrahi movement; con-
centrating the archives of leading figures in religious Zionism; collecting news-
papers of the religious Zionist movement, and collecting photographs and portraits
of its leaders and conventions.

In charge of the Archives: N. Ben Menahem, M. S. Geshury.

THE JEWISH HISTORICAL GENERAIL ARCHIVES

Jerusalews, Yad Wushem Bullding, Har Hazicaron,
P.O.B. 1062, Tel.: 5716

With the ingathering of the exiles a growing need was felt for creating a central
institution in Jerusalem to serve as a national repository for Jewish historical
research which is increasingly concentrated in Jerusalem. This need was filled
by the Jewish Historical General Archives — an organ of the Historical Society
of Israel — which since their foundation in 1939 methodically collect archives
of Jewish communities, institutions and organisations, public and private records
as well as odd historical documents from the Diaspora.

After the extermination of European Jewry the Archives concentrated their
efforts in post-war years on recovering the archival remnants of destroyed Jewish
communities. On the initiative of the Archives, special missions and local experts
conduct a systematic survey of Jewish records in various European countries in
order to register and microfilm the material if unable to acquire the original
documents and files. This also applies to relevant material which is found in
non-Jewish archives and will complete the archives transferred to Jerusalem or
replace lost Jewish records.

So far the archives or remnants thereof of about 1000 Jewish communities
from dozens of countries are kept at the General Archives as well as more than
700,000 frames of microfilm.

Reports on current activities of the General Archives are published regularly
in “Zion, A Quarterly for Research in Jewish History”, published by the
Historical Society of Israel.

The General Archives supply photographs and microfilms for research purposes
against payment of expenses.

Director: D. J. Cohen, M.A. {
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THE CENTRAL ARCHIVES OF “YAD WASHEM?”
Jerusalem, Yad Washem Building, Har Hazicaron,

P.O.B. 84, Tel.: 61518, 4847

Although the project to set up the Central Archives of “Yad Washem” was
initiated immediately after World War II, they were officially founded only
when the “Martyrs’ and Heroes’ Commemoration — Yad Washem — Law” was
passed in August 1953. In accordance with the tasks and aims of the “Yad
Washem” institution, the Central Archives — one of its departments — collect,
classify, arrange and catalogue the scattered material on the period of the
holocaust.

Close contact is kept with organised groups of people coming from the same
country or town, and help is offered to them in publishing monographs and
books which commemorate their communities.

Among the most important collections are to be mentioned, the archives of the
Munich Historical Commission which include thousands of German documents
dealing mainly with the extermination of German Jews, as well as testimonies
given by survivors of the massacre; a great deal of documentary material on war
criminals amassed in the two archival groups of the “Historical Committees”
in Vienna and Linz and the “Archives of the Underground Movement in Bialy-
stok Ghetto¥. .

Great importance is attached to many millions of microfilmed documents
which include the secret archives of the Warsaw Ghetto (Ringelblum Archives)
“and various papers and docufnents of the Gestapo and other German authorities
in the occupied territories as well as documents of the Archives of the Inter-
national Tracing Service at Arolsen, :

Details on new acquisitions and activities of the Archives are published regularly
in “Yedioth Yad Washem’.

Director of the Archives: Dr. J. Kermisz.

Tel-Aviv

THE ARCHIVES OF THE ISRAEL DEFENCE ARMY
Tel-Aviv, 4, Rehov Esther Hamalka, Tel. : 25510

The Archives and Museum of the Israel Defence Army were established in 1948
by order of the Prime Minister and Minister of Defence Mr. D. Ben Gurion
as a joint institution of the Defence Ministry and the Army.

This institution has the task of compiling, classifying, registering and preserving
all records and exhibits bearing witness to: Jewish self-defence in Erez Israel
and the Diaspora; the Jewish Defence Army; the War of Independence; the
part played by Jews everywhere in wars and national liberation movements;
Jewish contributions to military science.

After the enactment of the Archives’ Law in 1957, the State Archivist de-
termined that the Archives and Museum of the Israel Defence Army should
serve as the official repository of all institutions affiliated to the Defence Ministry:

Director: Moshe Shilo.
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ARCHIVES AND MUSEUM OF THE JEWISH
LABOUR MOVEMENT
Tel Aviv, Beit Lessin, 26, Rehov Hanassi Ch. Weizmann,
P.O.B. 303, Tel.: 24709

The main purpose of the Archives, founded in 1932, is to serve as a centre for
all material, information and research on the origin, history and scope of the
labour movement; to collect and preserve any item that has a'bearing on the
activities, struggles and achievements of the movement as a whole, both in the
Jewish-Zionist and international field.

Directors: J. Zerubavel — B. J. Michaly -

THE JABOTINSKY-INSTITUTE IN ISRAEL
Tel-Aviv, 38 Rehov King George, P.O.B. 2171, Tel. : 5091

The Institute was founded in 1934, cloesd down in 1938, but renewed its
activities after the death of Z. Jabotinsky in August 1940.

The Institute aims at compiling, arranging and preserving all material that
has a bearing on the national liberation movement. The whole collection centres
around the personality of Z. Jabotinsky, whose numerous letters and manuscripts
have been carcfully collected. Special niches are dedicated to deeds of bravery
and self-sacrifice for the sake of the Jewish people and homeland.

Since the Institute is meant to be both archives and museum, archival material
and other exhibits are kept side by side.

Director: Dr. Joseph Paamoni.

THE GENERAL ARCHIVES OF THE
TEL AVIV—]JAFFA MUNICIPALITY
Tel Aviv, Municipal Building, 27 Bialik St.
The historical archives which form part of the secretarial archives of the
Municipality concentrate all archival material on Tel Aviv’s history from 1906
onwards when the “Ahusat Bayit” company was set up, which later changed
its name to “Tel Aviv”,
Town Clerk, responsible for the Municipal Archives: Yehuda Nedivi.

Rehovoth

THE WEIZMANN ARCHIVES
Rehovoth, Weizmann House, Tel. : 95-1061

In 1951 Israel’s first president, Dr. Chaim Weizmann, created the Weizmann
Archives which contain documentary material on the president’s life-long
efforts for Zionism and science; they also include nearly 10,000 of Dr. Weiz-
mann’s letters, most of them originals.

Director: Boris Guriel.



Merchavia

ARCHIVES OF THE KIBBUTZ ARZI
HASHOMER HAZAIR MOVEMENT
Merchavia, Tel. : Affulah 44

The archives were established in 1937 and collect all printed and written

material concerning the Hashomer Hazair movement, the Kibbutz Arzi with

all its institutions and the United Workers’ Party in Erez Israel and the Diaspora.
Archivist: Mrs. Esther Sedan. ' 7

Kibbutz Lohamei Haghettaot

“GHETTO FIGHTERS’ HOUSE
IN MEMORY OF YIZHAK KATZNELSON”
Kibbutz Lohamei Haghettaot, Post Office Haifa

The “Ghetto Fighters’ House in Memory of Yizhak Katznelson” was established
on April 19, 1950, the seventh anniversary of the Warsaw Ghetto rising, to serve
as a centre for documentation and research into the period of the Jewish
people’s tragedy and the Jewish resistance movement in the days of Naz rule
in Europe.

Among the publications issued by the archives is the compilation “Extermina-
tion and Resistance, Historical Records and Source Material”’, the first volume
of which appeared in 1958, Similar periodical publications are issued in Hebrew.
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